
Meeting Minutes SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, January 13th, 2010.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




John Bernard, Vice-Chairperson 



Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member 




Steven Kessler, Board Member 



Ivan Kline, Board Member




Susan Todd, Board Member 



Robert Foley, Board Member 


ALSO PRESENT:




Edward Vergano, Department of Technical Services 




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney




Mr. John Milmore, CAC Chairman 



Mr. Jeff Rothfeder, CAC member 
Mrs. Viki Goldberg, CAC member 



Chris Kehoe, Planning Department  

Ms. Loretta Taylor presented herself as the new Chairperson and Mr. John Bernard as the Vice Chairman and thanked Chairman Kessler for his tenure on the Board as well as thanking him for his 20 years of service to the Town.
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there will be a change in the agenda it will become item ‘h)’ under ‘Correspondence’ it will be a letter from Joel Greenberg requesting a one-year extension of a site plan approval and rather than get into it at the moment we will discuss the letter at the appropriate time under ‘Correspondence.’ That will be an addition to this agenda.

Mr. John Klarl asked that’s letter H for a motion?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes, so moved, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF NOVEMBER 3, 2009
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated motion to accept the minutes of November 3rd, so moved, seconded.
Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question, I have some partial corrections on the minutes.

With all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
RESOLUTIONS

PB 7-09      a.
Public Hearing: Application of Congregation Yeshiva Ohr Hameir for Site Development Plan Approval , Wetland and Tree Removal permits and for a Special Permit pursuant to Section 307-50 of the Town of Cortlandt Zoning Code for a Seminary for the construction of a new on-site wastewater treatment plant and for the renovation/reconstruction of the existing Dodge City Building for classroom and dormitory space for property located at 141 Furnace Woods Road  as shown  on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan prepared for Yeshiva Ohr Hameir” latest revision dated June 18, 2009 prepared by Ralph Mastromonaco, P.E. and a 2 page set of drawings entitled “Dormitory Renovation/Reconstruction” prepared by KG&D Architects, undated (with a presentation date of July 7, 2009.) 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated good evening Madame Chairperson, David Steinmetz from the law firm of Zarin and Steinmetz representing Yeshiva Ohr Hameir.  Good evening to all of you.  We have received copies of the proposed draft Resolution of negative declaration pursuant to SEQRA, the State Environmental Quality Review Act.  We’ve also received a copy of the proposed draft Resolution granting Special Permit, Site Plan Wetlands and Tree Removal Permits.  Madame Chairperson I want to start by saying I want to thank staff for the tremendous amount of time that I know that they have spent working on these documents and exchanging information in conjunction with the applicant and our team but having appeared in front of this Board almost as long as Mr. Kessler has been on this Board, these are rather comprehensive documents and I appreciate the effort that went in.  We do have some issues of concern and some things that we want to identify but I know your Board was working your way through during the work session some of your issues and obviously we would like to hear your Board deliberate and address those.  Anything that we can contribute to your concerns and help resolve we would like to.  It sounded like you were making very good progress during the work session on the couple of open items that had been left for you. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have been looking at especially at the conditions that were drafted as part of this approval and the Board has submitted a few changes.  I’m going to start at this point and talk about things that we pretty much have decided on.  There were a few issues that still need to be discussed and voted but we were thinking for the item #2: “the Special Permit approval shall expire.”  We want three years here.  Originally the wording was for seven.  “The Special Permit approval shall expire three years from the date of the adoption of this Resolution at which time the applicant must make an application to renew and/or amend the Special Permit.”

Mr. John Klarl stated if I may pick up the next line.  And we were thinking it would say: “the applicant shall attend status meetings at the November 2010, November 2011 and November 2012 Planning Board meetings (or such other dates as scheduled by the Planning Board).  By October 1 of each year, the Planning Board shall receive reports from Town staff and the applicant as to the operation of the site and determine by the Planning Board Resolution citing for example any substantial Code violations and on, and off site water quality testing and in particular issues affecting health, safety, general welfare, and if the Yeshiva may be required to file a formal renewal to the Special Permit.”  The last line stays the same: “The existing Special Permit shall remain in full force in effect until final determination by the Planning Board Resolution on any Special Permit renewal applications.”  The only way the language is changed from what’s been handed out at our work session was we’ve made these status meetings of November 2010, November 2011, and November 2012 and we require by October 1 of each such year “the Planning Board shall receive reports.”  That’s the way we’ve talked about modifying condition 2 of the proposed Resolution.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I’m going to make one minor observation that I didn’t have a chance to make during your work session.  Should you choose to leave the entire second sentence in as you’ve just explained it Mr. Klarl, you certainly can do so.  I want to point out, however, that the reason the second half of that sentence was there about “determining by Resolution” whether there needed to be a “formal renewal” was because the original paragraph as drafted indicated that the Permit would be of seven years in duration and that the concept was coming in every two years and determining at that two-year point whether a “formal renewal” was required at the two-year point rather than at the seven-year point.  The reason I say this as a clarifier is you now have a three-year potential Special Permit with annual presentations.  There would be no need for the Board to make a determination at those annual points to file a formal renewal.  I know why that second half of the clause is there because I discussed it with staff and council.  You all can do what you choose.  You always have a right under section 307.91 of your Code to perform all necessary enforcement and if I understood what you told me at the beginning of the work session, you want to have a three-year Special Permit.
Mr. John Klarl responded I think also the reason they used the language “determined by Planning Board Resolution” so if they make these findings it not just be a finding on record, it would be a finding that’s contained in a Resolution.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated right, but the issue Mr. Klarl would be whether the finding relates to the finding of a formal renewal there would be no formal renewal in those intervening periods.

Mr. John Klarl stated I was talking about the Planning Board Resolution prior to the language citing for example: “any substantial Code violations.”  You’re talking about this next sentence.
Mr. David Steinmetz stated correct, the next part of the sentence.

Mr. John Klarl continued we’re not talking about that middle one.  You’re saying the “existing Special Permit shall remain in full force until final determination of the Planning Board Resolution.”

Mr. David Steinmetz stated no problem with that last sentence.  I’m in the phrase before that John.

Mr. John Klarl asked how do you propose to change it?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded quite frankly I actually think you can terminate it after “the Planning Board shall receive reports from the Town staff and the applicant as to…” and then just indicate what you want the reports on and then it would be a period.  That’s what you’re getting the reports on.  You obviously have the right, as I said, to determine any kind of enforcement activities under 307.91, but what I’m trying to point out and maybe I’m not doing it artfully.  When we did this originally we were coming in two years into a Special Permit duration.  At the end of that two-year period based upon the presentation this sentence was designed to allow you to decide ‘you know what? Let’s do a renewal now and not wait another five years.’

Mr. Steven Kessler stated why don’t we just end the sentence after “health, safety, general welfare.”  Is that what you’re saying?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded precisely Mr. Kessler.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated you still have to modify it because then the words “determined by Planning Board Resolution” won’t make any sense because there’s nothing to determine then.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded right.  I thought Mr. Klarl had indicated that was coming out.  You’re right so you would “receive reports as to the operation of the site on off-site water quality testing and in particular issues affecting health, safety…”
Mr. John Klarl stated you really think after “operation of the site in determining by Planning Board Resolution.” Obviously it protects the applicant also that they’re trying to say that if we find these violations if we reduce it to a Resolution rather than it just be something that’s on the record.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated receive and file literally and nothing done. 

Mr. John Klarl stated it’s to get a critical document and not just comments that you don’t understand what the import of the comments are.  Once again it would say “by October 1 of each year the Planning Board shall receive reports from Town staff and the applicant as to the operation of the site and determine by Planning Board Resolution citing for example any substantial Code violation in on and off-site water quality testing in particular issues affecting health, safety, general welfare.”  And I see Steve had a period there which I agree with but I thought the purpose of putting “Planning Board Resolution” in that sentence is that once again if we have any findings it would be reduced to Resolution rather than just comments on the minutes of the Board meeting. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I don’t want to quarrel about this John. 

Mr. John Klarl stated I think it’s a protection for you, “and determined by Planning Board Resolution.”

Mr. David Steinmetz stated the Planning Board is going to determine by Resolution whatever it wants at the end of each of those reviews. 

Mr. John Klarl stated they can also just have comments in the minutes. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated if you’re now going back to a three-year Special Permit like other Special Permits in the Town then the enforcement authority would seem to be coming from 307.91.

Mr. John Klarl stated it absolutely does. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s my only issue.  I think if you’d gone from seven to three, you’ve changed what you were originally proposing but again I don’t want to spend too much time on this because once we’ve gone to the three-year, we understand the three-year issue.  For the benefit of the record, we thought seven or greater was appropriate in light of the fact that you had periodic review but you’ve made that clear to us…

Mr. John Klarl stated let the Board take a look at it but the idea was actually make any findings by the Board would be reduced to a Resolution rather than just mere comments in the minutes. 
Mr. David Steinmetz stated understood.  My main concern, let’s eliminate from the sentence the notion that there’s some determination of filing for a formal renewal.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated you have to.  We could always adopt the Resolution.  There’s nothing that would preclude us.  I agree, I don’t see why that language is necessary.  The idea is to have a three-year Special Permit.  They’re going to come in once a year and meet and provide reports and they’ll have to apply no matter what.  They’re going to have to apply for the renewal. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated precisely. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated but those reports become a substantial part of a record that we use in making a determination about that renewal.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I don’t think we need to say here that there’ll be a Resolution determining that because we can always adopt any Resolution we want when they come in to meet with the Board. 

Mr. John Klarl stated the words Planning Board Resolution related to the last line that we instruct not clearly but I’m also saying it talks about us making some determination and you can determine something by the minutes, you can determine something by a Resolution.  If you want to knock out Resolution you can always have that right to do it.  I think that was one of the purposes of the first time.  I understand it really relates to the last part of the sentence which we knocked out. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re stopping at “issue” with a period possibly and then picking up with “the existing Special Permit shall remain in full force, etc.”  Is that where we’re going with that John?

Mr. John Klarl responded yes.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so in other words we want to consider taking out the “determine by Planning Board Resolution?”  That’s what we’re saying?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded no I didn’t hear that.

Mr. Robert Foley asked we’re keeping that in I would hope?

Mr. John Klarl stated you could do this too after “(Planning Board)” we could do “by October 1 of each year the Planning Board shall receive reports from Town staff and the applicant as to the operation of the site and determine whether there are any substantial Code violations on and off, and review the on and off water quality testing and, in particular, issues affecting health, safety, general welfare.”  

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s fine.  Whether you do it by Resolution or not that’s totally up to you.

Mr. John Klarl stated so “by October 1 of year, the Planning Board shall receive reports from Town staff and the applicant as to the operation of the site and determine whether it goes to any substantial Code violations exist, and review on and off water quality testing and, in particular, issues affecting health, safety, general welfare.”  Next line then begins “the existing Special Permit.”

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked where did the review come in?

Mr. John Klarl responded I put “any substantial Code violations exist, and review on and off water quality testing and, in particular, issues affecting health, safety, general welfare.”

Mr. Robert Foley stated in other words, the words “Planning Board by Planning Board Resolution” are coming out?

Mr. John Klarl responded yes.  

Mr. Robert Foley asked and that doesn’t take any strength out of this #2?

Mr. John Klarl responded no.  I’m trying to suggest to the applicant that that was a further protection for the applicant but you always have the right.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated at this point if we’re going to determine something we’ll probably be drafting a Resolution and so to take the words out…

Mr. John Klarl stated this mandated it.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I have no objection if you want to leave that in there.  My point is that if we come in and there’s a presentation you may not adopt any Resolution.  You shouldn’t be obligated to adopt a Resolution annually on this.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we can make them very short, two paragraphs.  We don’t have to have four or five page Resolutions.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I think what John read is fine. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated does anybody have another reading of this before we move on to the next?

Mr. John Klarl stated the second line of condition #2 will read: “the applicant shall attend status meetings at the November 2010, November 2011, and November 2012 Planning Board meetings (or such other dates as scheduled by the Planning Board.)  By October 1 of each year, the Planning Board shall receive reports from Town staff and the applicant as to the operation of the site and determine whether any substantial Code violations exist and, review on and off site water quality testing and, in particular, issues affecting health, safety, and general welfare.”  Then we go to our last line which does not change.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that’s the reading for that particular condition.  There were a couple of others.  Is there anybody who wants to…

Mr. Robert Foley stated it was brought up at the work session condition #3 the “$3,000 contribution.” Two issues on that in my view anyway: is the $3,000 enough to cover true water quality testing?  And, is this just a one-time contribution or is it an annual.  Should it be higher?  That’s the issue and I don’t know if we really got into a big discussion on it at the work session. 
Mr. David Steinmetz asked Madame Chairperson would you like to hear from the applicant on this?  Let me start Bob by answering it in reverse.  There were two sentences that were added to this condition in the last version.  We have no objection about the additional testing being required if there is contamination.  We think that’s already a matter of State and County requirement and the parameters of any water monitoring program the Town has obviously a right to make it’s own decisions about its water monitoring program.  Let’s go to the first issue in the first sentence.  As Mr. Vergano explained to you in the work session, the Town has its own obligations.  I don’t know Ed, is it under your MS-4?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded that’s right under MS-4.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated under the Town’s obligations under MS-4 you have water monitoring obligations throughout the Town as determined by DOTS as you’ve indicated in the third sentence of the proposed condition.  There is no obligation under DEC SPDES permitting or the DOH regulation of our sewage treatment plant that we do off-site water monitoring.  We discussed that with you earlier and we explained and we’re happy to do it briefly tonight why we don’t think that needs to be done.  It’s real simple.  We’re obligated to monitor all effluent discharge at our point of discharge.  It doesn’t matter what’s happening anywhere else if this sewage treatment plant exceeds the limits required by State and County regulation they’re in violation at that point.  What we did was we offered a voluntary contribution, my client offered a voluntary contribution to the Town’s monitoring program.  I’m not aware of any other property owner that has made that type of voluntary contribution.  I’m not aware of any other property owner that’s been obligated by this Board to do water monitoring, and I’m certainly not aware of whether you’ve ever imposed on other sewage treatment plants here in the Town, the proposed plant at Mr. Triglia’s property, the operating plant at Valeria that they have to do off-site water monitoring.  We’re not telling you that water monitoring is imprudent in any way.  In fact, Ed’s told you the Town has to do it.  So, the Town can do it and you all can make your recommendations but what we want you to understand is we’re going to have to monitor our contribution to that stream frequently, Louise, how often?

Ms. Louise Doyle stated certain per hours, daily, some monthly, some quarterly.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that was clear for the record, certain daily, certain monthly, and certain quarterly.  Remember, you went above-and-beyond State and County regulation.  You’ve actually imposed upon us, and we agreed to do it, we’re going to send all of those records to the Town.  They normally just go to the County and to the DEC, you’re going to get them.  I come to hopefully the conclusion to your question and that is yes we think $3,000 is a fair contribution.  It’s a one-time contribution because we’re allowing you to do that what you’re already obligated to do under State Law under your MS-4, you’ve got to go out and do your monitoring.  We’re going to monitor our site.  You’re going to make sure we monitor our site.  We don’t think you have the ability to make us monitor somewhere else. 

Mr. John Bernard stated to clarify the record, we have imposed water monitoring for instance on the Hollowbrook golf course.  There’s extensive water monitoring there that was mandated by this Board.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated John, you’re absolutely right and let’s remember we talked about that precisely why.  That’s because you know that the Hollowbrook Country Club is putting contaminants, fertilizers, herbicides, pesticides, that could migrate into a drinking water supply as opposed to our site where: a) it’s not a drinking water supply and b) we’re already obligated to meet certain discharge levels at our point of discharge.  So, unlike Hollowbrook, which could conceivably discharge regularly but for your monitoring, who would know what they were doing. 

Mr. John Bernard asked but David, where does this site drain to?

Mr. David Steinmetz stated the Hudson River as I understand it.

Mr. John Bernard stated and the Hudson River is a drinking water river and it’s under very strict Federal guidelines as to water quality and to all the tributaries to it. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated as you know, we actually have to discharge to intermittent stream standards and you know quite well that that’s actually…

Mr. John Bernard stated let’s cut it short. The real reason that we were asking for a baseline test, that’s what’s really important to me right now, is some baseline tests of effluent at the site and downstream from the site before anything happens. The reason that’s important, obviously, is that later on you have to have something to compare it to, to see if there’s been any good or bad changes.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I’m not the right person to make the next argument and I’m going to let Louise do it, but I’m going to set it up by simply saying, you’re right, you can do that, but you know, because we gave you a quantification, our contribution to the entire water shed in that stream is well below 1% and therefore if you did the empirical analysis you’re suggesting, you’re testing lots and lots of other properties therefore, imposing an obligation for monitoring on this property doesn’t seem to have a direct nexus to what you’re trying to achieve.  That’s why we’re offering to make a voluntary contribution and that’s why you’re going to make sure that my client…

Mr. John Bernard stated the original question was, which you were going to clarify is $3,000 enough a contribution to an overall water quality testing program?  Is the $3,000 enough to establish baselines at the site and downstream from the site for this project?  That’s really what we’re asking.  Someone needs to tell us if $3,000 is enough.  We don’t know.  I don’t test water.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded you’d have to ask Mr. Vergano because according to your proposal here he’s going to actually come up with the water monitoring program. 

Mr. John Bernard stated somehow $3,000 got suggested and put into this Resolution as an amount of money to do water testing, so where did that come from?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded Ed or Chris or John?  We had a discussion.  We offered a voluntary contribution of $3,000.

Mr. John Bernard stated then the question still stands is it enough to do baseline testing at site and downstream from the site?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded that would have to be evaluated.  We’re not sure. 

Mr. John Bernard stated then this is going to move to the next meeting?  Is that what we’re saying?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I don’t think it is.  I don’t think it needs to with all due respect.

Mr. John Bernard stated then someone needs to establish for us what that means.  This is not a new issue.  If it were a new issue I would apologize and say ‘gee, I’m sorry.’  But, I won’t because it’s not new.  It needs to be addressed.
Mr. David Steinmetz stated Mr. Bernard I’m certainly not asking for your apology.  None is necessary.  What we’ve explained is exactly what we’ve told you all along and I haven’t heard anything different from the Board and with all due respect, from staff.  I think they understand that we will be monitoring everything we’re doing.

Mr. John Bernard stated I’m talking about baseline testing and I imagine $3,000 is enough to at least give us baseline testing but I don’t know that.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I’m going to let Ms. Doyle address the significance of the…
Mr. John Bernard stated and if it’s not enough than we should have an amount of money that you could add to it.  It should be open-ended.

Ms. Louise Doyle asked as far as baseline testing, do you, or does anyone in the Town have any idea as to what parameters you’re looking to be sampled for or how many samples downstream and at what locations?  Because, we can present a program but that’s really what’s going to determine how much is enough.  As David said, the discharge, it’s a point discharge from the sewage treatment plant of treated effluent.  That discharge is sampled depending on the parameters: daily, weekly, monthly, quarterly.  I don’t have the draft limits from the State that would tell us that I can cite right now what parameters and how frequently.  But, at a minimum colliforms which everybody’s concerned with, total colliforms, fecal colliforms, those will most likely be sampled either monthly or quarterly.  The DEC will determine that.  

Mr. John Bernard stated Louise, let me stop you please, just to save some time.  We’re talking about baseline.  I’m not talking about after anything’s built or what’s coming out, so I don’t care about the effluent afterwards for this point, I don’t care.  Baseline testing, so I think what we could reasonably do is talk to one of our environmental consultants and they could say ‘we’ll pick a site at the applicant’s site to do a baseline test there and perhaps I don’t think you need more than one or two additional test sites.’  You don’t need to test an entire drainage basin.  What we’re looking for is a baseline from this application.  Is that clear enough?  So, let’s say three tests at the site and two downstream and we’ll have the environmental consultants select the sites.

Ms. Louise Doyle asked would you be asking for anything more than what would be sampled for under the SPDES Permit?

Mr. John Bernard responded I think it can be a very simple test.  We’re looking for sewage effluent.

Ms. Louise Doyle stated if you’re talking three sites, colliform bacteria, one-time event even a two or three-time event, $3,000 will more than cover it.

Mr. John Bernard stated thank you.  Is it all right with the applicant that we have the environmental consultants select the three sites?

Ms. Louise Doyle asked will this then be truly baseline?  You do the sampling be it once, be it twice, be it three times and you’re done with it?  Or, is this then going to go into a recurring?

Mr. John Bernard stated you are the expert on sewage plants and sewage outflows.  You tell me\

Ms. Louise Doyle responded to me baseline means you do it once, you do it twice and you’re done with it.  

Mr. John Bernard stated that’s all.  You can’t do anymore than when construction starts because then it’s not baseline anymore is it?
Ms. Louise Doyle stated I just wanted to be sure we’re in agreement. 

Mr. John Bernard stated let’s clarify, two testings of three sites over a period of two weeks.

Mr. John Klarl asked over a period of what John?

Mr. John Bernard responded over a period of two weeks at the environmental consultant’s recommendation.  On the first day and on the fourteenth day, I don’t know what they’re going to recommend I’m not the consultant.  It’s simple.  I don’t think it needs to be a complex agreement. 

Ms. Louise Doyle stated I think we just agreed to do colliform, total colliform and fecal colliform.  Not a problem.

Ms. Susan Todd stated I think it’s very likely that right now judging on the condition of the current septic that you’re going to have a lot in that stream.

Ms. Louise Doyle stated we’ll find out. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated also, you’re giving your expert opinion.  May I ask Ed and staff or a representative of the CAC what their feeling is on this. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I’d like to differ to our environmental consultant who knows a lot more about this.  I hear what John is saying and I agree with the protocol but I’d like to get more information from HDR.

Mr. Robert Foley asked can CAC weigh in for a minute?

Mr. John Milmore stated the CAC, as you know, on November 17th requested baseline testing and I have a couple of concerns here.  One, I realize that colliform bacteria is the standard for testing sewage but I’m wondering if that’s the only and I’d like to ask the applicant’s expert whether there are other bacteria or any other micro-organisms that are tested for when you’re testing a sewer treatment?  Is e-coli the only bacteria in human waste?

Ms. Louise Doyle responded when you’re testing a sewage treatment plant effluent for bacteria it’s total colliform and it’s fecal colliform.  That’s what the Permit limits are written around.  

Mr. John Milmore stated I understand that but are those the only micro-organisms in human waste? 

Ms. Louise Doyle responded no, but those are the ones that are commonly sampled and they’re the indicators of when you have a problem.  Remember, it’s not just humans.  There’s wild life, there’s domestic animals.  You don’t want to start getting too exotic or ask a lab, honestly, to test for a parameter that they don’t normally test for because it could also put the validity of the results in question.  Although, they may be certified for it, if it’s something they do once every five years ‘okay, how good are they doing this?’ as opposed to something they’re doing hundreds of samples every day. 

Mr. John Milmore stated we too are concerned with the $3,000 contribution and whether it will be adequate and in the long run.  One of the ideas that we discussed at our last meeting is perhaps asking that the applicant contribute a percentage to whatever we find out what our consultants say this is going to cost.  Frankly, it sounds like we’re really in the dark as to what this is going to cost.  Since this is going to be a major change in the environment, hopefully for the positive.  Perhaps, the Board might consider requesting that the applicant pay, instead of a flat fee or a flat contribution of $3,000, after our consultants tell us what to test for and what it’s going to cost and how often we should test than the applicant would agree in these conditions before that happens to pay say arbitrarily half.  We’re also talking about the site around and I understand what is the applicant’s responsibility to that.  Obviously they have some responsibility for what goes on around the site because they’re going to contribute to it.  I think a percentage might be something you might think about rather than just a flat $3,000 that gets them off-the-hook forever.

Mr. John Bernard stated John, that’s a commendable idea.  I don’t know what we would base the percentage on but I get your point.  We have to remember that the applicant is going to be testing the plant because it’s a requirement of the State and the County, quarterly, weekly, daily on this schedule of testing that they have to do for effluent.  Beyond the baseline testing, they’re not responsible for anything off-site other than their effluent.  I don’t know of any further requirement we can impose on them for off-site testing beyond that because the Town is going to be testing off-site Town-wide. In other words, that’s going to be accomplished.

Mr. John Milmore stated I heard in the work session, I heard about the comment about the Town-wide program and, frankly, I’m not aware of the parameters of the Town-wide program.  Who’s doing the testing?  What are they testing for?  I’m sorry Ed, but I’m not aware of it and I’d like to have clarification on that.  Just to say we have a Town-wide program doesn’t mean much to me. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated at this point gentleman, we are going around and around.  We really do need to maybe hold this abeyance for the moment.  If we’re all in the dark and we don’t have our consultants here to tell us or advise us as to what this is likely going to cost and who’s supposed to pick up what percentage of the tab, I think that maybe we ought to leave this now and, as Chris said, talk to somebody who would know better, getting the consultant to advise us as to what we need to be thinking about in terms of the baseline testing, how often we should be doing it, how much they think it’s going to cost.  I don’t know that we do need to lock ourselves into this $3,000 figure and because nobody really knows what it’s going to be maybe we ought to wait a little bit on that and see if we can’t get closer to what we need to make a decision. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Madame Chairman if I could briefly hit that point.  We certainly have no objection if you all want to confer with HDR with regard to the Town’s water monitoring program on a going forward basis as Mr. Milmore seems to be suggesting but going back to Mr. Bernard’s issue of baseline testing.  I think we can resolve that now and I want to point out that the documents were provided to Mr. Coleman and HDR.  Both HDR and Mr. Coleman provided you all and your staff with recommendations and conditions.  None of them recommended some type of obligation on the applicant to do future on-going monitoring.  Mr. Bernard has made it very clear and Ms. Todd in the work session that they were questioning baseline which is different than the MS-4 going forward.  Mr. Bernard asked a very specific question that I couldn’t answer whether the $3,000 would be sufficient to do the initial baseline testing.  We’ve been told it is sufficient.  I think the answer to Bob’s question of 15 minutes ago is: yes, you’ve got a sufficient amount to do the baseline testing of the two or three constituents in the two or three areas on two times in two weeks as was requested.  I think we’ve resolved condition #3 and I certainly think that the CAC has every right to confer with the Department of Technical Services as to the on-going water monitoring in and around the Town.  I would ask, with all due respect Board members, that we go beyond this because I think we have resolved this issue.  I think we are going to give you your baseline testing and we’re going to give you probably more documentation about the testing of the water at our point than you care to receive. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I’m not so sure that staff said that the $3,000 was ample.  I may have misunderstood. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated when I met with them they did. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the sentence says that you are going to contribute $3,000 “toward the necessary funds for the Town to develop a water quality monitoring program including baseline testing.”  If baseline testing came close to $3,000 you might….

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I think what we said was we were going to change this #3 to “develop a water quality monitoring baseline program.”  I think that’s what we said.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked was it baseline in there?  I didn’t get that.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated no at the work session we said that it was going to be “baseline.”  “Water quality monitoring baseline program.”

Mr. John Klarl stated what we said at the work session is the “$3,000 to the Town towards the necessary funds for the Town to develop a water monitoring program for water quality, including baseline testing,” that’s what the work session discussion was.

Mr. Robert Foley stated in other words “baseline” is in there. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated “including the baseline.”

Mr. John Klarl stated at the work session that had been proposed.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated why don’t we just make it clear that the $3,000 is intended to cover the cost of the baseline testing that Ed directs in his discretion with the balance to be a contribution towards the on-going water monitoring program for the intermittent stream.  That should take care of everybody’s concerns.

Mr. John Klarl stated which I think lines up with the discussion…

Mr. Ivan Kline stated you could test, I know I have well, I do samples for the colliform.  It costs $60 or $70 or something to get a sample tested for colliform.  It’s not an enormous expense.  

Mr. John Klarl stated I think the language we have saying the balance.  We can work with “the applicant shall contribute $3,000 to the Town towards the necessary funds for the Town to develop a water monitoring program for water quality, including baseline water testing,” so we get the $3,000 we don’t have to calculate part of three for something what the balance is. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated however it’s worded.  I think we’re all clear what the intent is. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we had some issues again with condition #4.  

Mr. John Klarl stated the proposed language at the work session on 4 “maximum number of students enrolled at the Yeshiva shall be limited to 225.  The maximum number of people to regularly occupy the site shall not exceed 300, excluding special events which shall be governed by the relevant Fire Code, Parking Code and other applicable Codes affecting occupancy.”  That’s what was discussed.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked fire?

Mr. John Klarl stated “the relevant Fire Code, Parking Code and other applicable Codes affecting occupancy.”

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we have no objection to that change.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked Board members are we good with that one?  

Mr. John Klarl stated at the work session we really focused on 2, 3, and 4.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated at this point we would be willing to what to move for an adoption of this once it’s cleaned up?

Mr. John Klarl responded as discussed.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated as discussed here obviously. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated better adopt a neg. dec.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we have to do the neg. dec. first.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated let’s take a look at it.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated just one more thing on the Resolution.  In #11 we say “the Architectural Advisory Council” is it their reviewing comments or do we…

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded they don’t have approval?

Mr. Robert Foley asked Mr. Kessler had a memo.  You had some points two weeks ago on the original, on #11 something about the Architectural…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated that’s what we just talked about.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I believe changes by accident were made on pages 4, 8, 12 and 16.  

Mr. David Steinmetz asked of the neg. dec. Chris, you’re talking about?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.  I think the majority of those, if not all of them were in response to Mr. Kessler’s concerns.  I don’t know if David, do you need it?  Page 4 added “estimated maximum” in front of 23,000.  Page 8 was really something that Ed and I worked on with respect to the flooding issue.  
Mr. Ed Vergano stated the intent there was to keep any displaced flood waters on the subject property not off the property. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we decided to eliminate the garden hose reference.  One of the questions was is it one or two garden hoses so we just took it out.  Steve, with request – we just eliminated the fact that this is a lower population than the property historically accommodated.  Some of your other comments were typo type things.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what about my first comment about a whereas clause that referenced the student population?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded John, remember that was discussed at our meeting with respect to the Code Enforcement Director’s issue.

Mr. John Klarl asked what page are you looking at now?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded it’s not in there.  I just didn’t know if there needed to be a reference, a whereas clause that made reference to because, to me, that was a seminal letter.

Mr. John Klarl responded you’re talking about the Flandreau letter itself?  We set it up a whole different way.  I don’t know where Chris put it.  Remember Chris we talked about doing it in an alternate fashion. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I thought that what we had determined is that since there was reference in there to the numbers which I believe we found that we decided not to add it. 

Mr. John Klarl stated right.  I’m saying we did an alternate route on that issue.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what’s the alternate?  Was it the neg. dec. and then there’s the Resolution.

Mr. John Klarl stated Chris I think had worked those numbers.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated if it’s not in here then Steve may be right in the sense that we – it’s on page 16 just the two numbers, the 225 and the 300.

Mr. John Klarl stated that’s the way we handled it.  On top of page 16 it says “whereas in conjunction with and in constitution with the Town, the Yeshiva has voluntarily capped its student population to 225 and its overall population to 300.”  Maybe we should also finish that “whereas with” the other language contained in the Special Permit about the special events.  Chris we’ll flush that out a little bit more.  You know the language we put in the Special Permit?
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded regarding the relevant Fire Codes and all that?

Mr. John Klarl stated actually #4.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated just parallel the language after the number 300.

Mr. John Klarl stated it would say “whereas in conjunction with and in constitution of the Town, the Yeshiva has voluntarily capped its maximum number of students enrolled at the Yeshiva to 225, and the maximum number of people to regularly occupy the site to 300, excluding special events which shall be governed by the relevant Fire Code, Parking Code and other applicable Codes affecting occupancy.”  We’re going to take the substance of condition 4 and replace it at the top of page 16 with a neg. dec.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked were there any other areas here that we needed to take a look at?
Mr. David Steinmetz asked you’re referring just to the neg. dec. Madame Chair?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes.  Beginning with the neg. dec. we can have a motion to adopt that and then we will move on to the Resolution.
Ms. Susan Todd stated Madame Chairwoman I’d like to make a motion to adopt the negative declaration on pb 7-09 for the Yeshiva, seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated on the question the neg. dec. flows from parts I, II, and III of the EAF and since there was some question whether this was going to be adopted – I typically, you know if you get a Resolution right behind a Resolution you get the short form with it or the long form.  I have the completed parts I, II, and III.  It’s just that you don’t all have seven copies but you’re also adopting, I believe David, the neg. dec. flows from I, II and III.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated it would be attached to the neg. dec.

Ms. Susan Todd stated the neg. dec. and attachments.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated with all in favor saying "aye."  Let’s move to Resolution 1-10.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Madame Chair before you proceed to consider a vote on this I have two minor things that we didn’t cover: one was in the “whereas” clause is that it appears in two places.  On page 3 and page 4 of the approved Resolution at the top of page 3 it says: “whereas after review by the Town it was determined that a connection by the Yeshiva to the Red Oak sewer district and Steven Lanes pump station was not possible for a variety of technical and financial reasons” and the same language appears on the next page in finding #2 it has been “deemed by the Town to be impractical due to technical and financial issues.”  I’m not clear what the financial issues were.  I didn’t want the record to be unclear on that point.  The Yeshiva was prepared to proceed with a sewer connection, had done studies.  I wasn’t sure whether that was to imply the Town’s financial issue or the applicant’s.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t know where you’re reading from.  The top of page 4?

Mr. David Steinmetz stated top of page 3.

Mr. John Klarl stated and then finding 2 on page 4.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the top of my page 3 says “Red Oak sewer district…”

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s it. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated we could just strike “financial issues.”  It was primarily technical issues.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated the other final concern that I had Madame Chairperson is condition #13.  We had offered to do the orientation program to address the concerns that had been expressed about walking on the Town streets.  We would just simply like to provide the flyer to the Town.  I’m not quite sure if the Town wants to be involved in preparation of orientation materials for the Yeshiva students.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think the language in there says to be approved by the Town.  Maybe you can take out “approved by the Town.”  We just wanted to make sure that there was a document that showed that you had done something. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated absolutely and that’s why I said “Chris, we’re happy to provide it.”  My recommendation would be that we simply we’d be obligated to prepare an informational flyer to be provided to the Town. 

Mr. John Klarl asked could we do “including and preparing and informational flyer to be provided to the Town.”

Mr. David Steinmetz stated perfect.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated while we’re on that subject and I’m glad to see that there is a condition requiring an on-site walking path that was added here.  While we’re on that #13 subject, while the students have every right to walk on the roads, there’s no denying that, the way this reads I don’t want to encourage them to do that.  What I wanted to see if we could revise this condition to right after the read word “Town” “to advise students concerning safety issues of walking on or near public roads” rather than “students concerning safe walking on.”
Mr. John Klarl asked how about “educate?”

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s fine and Mr. Bianchi I’d go one better if you want to take this up on it.  We are happy, and I’ve been authorized to say, if a representative of the Town, Mr. Vergano or someone else wants to participate in that orientation program and come and speak to safety and similar type issues, we would be pleased to have him come.

Mr. John Klarl stated how about this “including preparing an official flyer to be provided to the Town, to educate students concerning safely walking on or near the public roads?”

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked safety issues was what?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi responded “to educate students concerning safely walking…”

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think it’s just additional wording.  I think Tom’s wording sort of makes it sound like it’s a dangerous thing and I’m glad.  I see where you’re going with that.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I’m trying to say we don’t want you to do it.  We can’t stop you from doing it but if you’re going to do it be careful.  “To educate and advise students concerning safety…”

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think “to advise students of the safety issues concerning walking on or near public roads” is fine.  It’s very straightforward.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated “safety issues involved in walking on or near public roads.”  Maybe you want to wordsmith a little bit more.

Mr. John Klarl stated this is what we have after “informational flyer to be provided to the Town, to educate and advise students concerning safety issues in walking on or near the public roads in the vicinity of the school.”

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated that gives you the spirit of what I wanted to say.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Madame Chairperson we have no other comments that I’m aware of on the Resolution.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I do want to say too I omitted to saying that I do think that condition 18 is good that you all constructed and I think you’ve obviously agreed to do this, the walking path on-site for students, right?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded we had originally offered to do that as part of the original, more comprehensive proposal.  We had eliminated it from this more narrow and focused proposal and this condition appeared in the revised draft that we got back. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so what are you saying?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I’m making sure you didn’t hear an enthusiastic endorsement but my understanding is you have asked for it, you will receive it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we like that.  

Ms. Susan Todd stated I’d like to make a motion that we adopt Resolution number 01-10 granting this site development plan approval with the attached 19 conditions.

Mr. John Klarl stated specifically with conditions 2, 3, 4 and 13 having been modified per our discussions at this open meeting.  Obviously the striking of the word “financial” twice that Ed spoke about.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated these things are going to be worked out anyway.

Mr. John Klarl stated those specific conditions we’ve massaged tonight.

Seconded.

Mr. John Bernard stated on the question I just wanted to thank the neighborhood around the Yeshiva for all of their various inputs, including, last month or six weeks ago we received technical specifications for an alternate sub-surface pressurized septic system and I just wanted everyone to be aware that we did read through all those technical specifications and though it looked like it is an operable system in that high water table area it also is – there are quite a few requirements for heavy maintenance of that system and in the final analysis it looked like there was no particular advantage to that system over what has been proposed and accepted here tonight with the package plan. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I’d like to echo that too.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated on one of the questions there was one more issue I had written about and that was the condition that affirms the decommissioning of the septic system, is that in there?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded that’s in there.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated it was added in #6.
With all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated thank you all for your time and attention and your persistence with us in this application.



*



*
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PUBLIC HEARINGS (ADJOURNED)

PB 1-07       a.
Application of Mark Giordano, for the property of Ruth Cohen, for Preliminary Plat Approval and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a 6 lot major subdivision of a 23.4 acre parcel of land located on the south side of Upland Lane, south of Mt. Airy Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Alternate Layout “A” Preliminary, Plat, Proposed Subdivision of Upland Estates,” and “Alternate Layout “A” Tree Preservation Plan,” latest revision dated August 20, 2009, and “Watershed Map” dated August 19, 2009 all prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. and a drawing entitled “Landscape Plan for the Development, Upland Estates” prepared by Tim Miller Associates, Inc. dated August 20, 2009.
Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chair I’m recused on this application.
Mr. John Klarl stated so am I.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated here on behalf of the applicant.  I will be very brief.  We made a more extensive presentation in connection with Upland Estates at the original session of the public hearing.  We received a number of comments and questions from the public, many of which we have attempted to respond to in writing in our most recent submission.  The most significant legal issue that we got from the public as well as from the Board related to our ability to improve Upland Lane which is a private road.  We have provided both a factual and legal memorandum on that as well as an opinion from Mr. Giordano’s title company on his legal ability to suitably improve Upland Lane.  My understanding is that the Town is retaining outside council, special council to review that.  I feel compelled, for the benefit of the record, I did share with staff in response to a letter, that Mr.  Riesel has not been a sub-tenant in my suite for more than four or five years.  I have not spoken to Mr. Riesel in probably in excess of 12 years.  I just thought you all should know that just so that there was this impression of Mr. Riesel was my next-door neighbor in my law suite.  I actually saw the gentleman at a Town Board meeting here about four or five years ago while I was sitting in the audience.  I have not spoken with him probably since 1998.  I have no problem you hiring Mr. Lodes or anyone else.  I just didn’t want anyone to disparage implicitly Mr. Riesel as a result of this application.  He has done nothing, spoken to no one and he’s a gentleman of fine esteem.  Having said that, we’ve provided you with legal and factual material.  I hope it answers the questions.  We believe it does.  Our title company, Mr. Giordano’s title company, has insured his ability to improve Upland Lane.  We’ll leave it for your council to review and ultimately opine.  My understanding is that some of the neighbors are here.  I should mention for the record that Mr. Giordano did meet with a number of the neighbors voluntarily to discuss his plans for the subdivision, for the road, etc.  We want to have an open and frank dialogue with the neighborhood.  We think we have a wonderful proposal consistent with the surrounding environment and we’re happy to listen to any comments.  My understanding is that you do wish to await a legal opinion from your new council and we will certainly wait with you.  If there’s anything further though that you all would like to cover, our team is here tonight.  Mr. Giordano is here and if the Board has any specific questions or concerns that we haven’t identified.  We feel we’ve given you a long form EAF along with additional reports.  I think you’ve gotten a traffic report in from Mr. Canning, your consultant, so if you have any questions we’re delighted to take them and see if we can respond.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing.  If there is anyone from the surrounding community who wants to get up and speak, please do so.

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated on behalf of the Arboretum.  I’m not clear whether it was the Board’s intention to, or during this public hearing until such time the special council has been hired. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated yes it is. 

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated I have a great deal to say on this particular application but I’d like to hold it until such time as you schedule the next public hearing but I would ask you that if in fact special council has been selected to tell us what the name of special council is.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded it’s Mr. Carl Lodes.

Ms. Karen Jescavage Bernard stated thank you very much.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated is there anybody from the public who wishes to speak?

Mr. John Neblo stated from 23 Upland Lane.  It was simply to reiterate what Karen said.  A number of the neighbors do in fact have further comment but it would perhaps be more efficient for everyone concerned if we’ve saved our comments for when the Board is fully equipped with special council.  It would also give us the opportunity to prepare a more detailed response both legally, engineering and otherwise to Mr. Giordano’s new submission.  I was one of the neighbors that Mr. Giordano met with and we’d like to thank him for his generous spirit in coming out and meeting with us.  It was kind of him to come out and discuss the project.  I’m afraid not much has changed substantively in terms of our view of the project but it was a nice gesture on his part and we do appreciate that.
Mr. Lee Streisfeld-Leitner presented himself to the Board and stated of 3 Upland Lane.  I have a letter which is also requesting adjournment preferably to the March 2nd meeting.  I just wanted to address the comment that Mr. Steinmetz made about Dan Riesel.  We never assumed there was a conflict.  There was simply the appearance of a potential one and that is simply due to his still having on his Martindale Hubble listing the 81 Main Street.  I have a letter explaining the reasons we request adjournment that I’d like to submit.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it is the Board’s intent to adjourn this particular application to our March meeting.  We have a packet of new information that we got and we would like to send this out to our attorney Lodes and get his input and advice.  The ensuing time between now and the next meeting is rather short.  We’re thinking everybody will have enough time, including the people in the audience who want to provide additional information to the Board, will have enough time to do so.  March 2nd is when we’re adjourning this to. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Mr. Chairperson if I may add one thing for the record.  I want to renew the statement I made at the December public hearing and that is if any of the neighbors have material from their title company that contravenes what Mr. Giordano’s title company has concluded we would certainly ask that they share that with you and with us. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated Madame Chairwoman I’ll make a motion, before I do I’d like to also acknowledge and on the record the letters that we have received from the residents, two of which just spoke, I won’t mention all names and also from the Arboretum, very detailed information from them.  I want to acknowledge that.  I make a motion that we adjourn this application to the March 2nd meeting, seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it depends on what our outside council tells us but I guess we should try to have him here at our March meeting if he’s ready to be here.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that would be wonderful. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated for the neighbors, I would urge that if you are going to have council submit something and it sounds like from the letter that came in you are, that you try to have it done in time that it will be part of our regular distribution and not something that’s just handed up to us on March 2nd.  What’s the deadline?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded the submission deadline for that meeting.

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded it’s two Friday’s before that Tuesday. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated 11 days before.  It would just be helpful for the Board because then it comes in the packet of things we can actually read sitting down at home before the meeting rather than try to digest something on the spot. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated according to my notes that would be February 19th.  According to our official meeting notice schedule.  It says February 19th for the March 2nd meeting.  That does help us because when people bring substantive and sometimes very thick packets of information, it’s very difficult.  We’re having to postpone or adjourn because we didn’t have time to read.  We can’t discuss things and make intelligent decisions on things we haven’t even read.  The sooner you get material to us, the better it is for everybody in terms of moving things along. 
With all in favor saying "aye." 


*
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OLD BUSINESS 
PB 10-09    a.
Application of the Peekskill New York Congregation of Jehovah’s Witnesses for Site Development Plan Approval for a 1,938 sq. ft. addition to the existing 2,117 sq. ft. church building and for an additional 19 parking spaces for property located at 1071 Oregon Road as shown on a 6 page set of drawings entitled “Civil Site Plans for Peekskill Kingdom Hall Congregation of Jehovah’s Witnesses” prepared by CHA, dated December 22, 2009.

Mr. Jason Anderson presented himself to the Board and stated I’m an architect with Foreign Anderson Architects and I have with me the applicant, Scott Lucas representing the Congregation as well Dick Toby, professional engineer and Crystal with CHA Engineers.  What we’ve done since the last time we were here, if you remember, we had a plan and it was a presentation of what we were planning on doing.  We’ve had engineering documents that we’ve now been preparing as well as we’ve received a letter from Mr. Vergano regarding comments based on the original presentation that we gave.  We’ve been answering these.  We don’t have them all answered at this point but we’re well on our way towards moving forward.  I want to see if you want us to review the letter that we have here.  
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t know whether any members of the Board – you certainly can expound on anything else you need to regarding this project.  I don’t whether any of the Board members have anything that they want to ask.  You might want to do just a little bit and then let’s see where we go with that. 

Mr. Jason Anderson stated here’s where we stand.  What we’re doing is we’re expanding the parking lot by 19 spaces as well as we’re expanding the building as you see the square footages that we have there.  If you remember from the last time, what we’re basically doing is taking the uses that we have in the basement, putting them on the first floor because they’re not accessible to meet ADA requirements and that’s the purpose of what we’re doing.  We do have a little bit of steep slopes on the property, a small area.  Basically, what we’re doing – I don’t know if you know the property, it’s just about a mile away and we’re going to be adding the 19 spaces more to the left on the screen there and you can see the addition, which is darker, shaded a little bit darker on the building.  As we’ve been going through we really see no areas where we’re going to have problems with the zoning.  We meet, based on the seating that we have there, there’s no additional seating that we’re bringing in.  The parking we now have laid out meets the current zoning.  Everything else, our setbacks, the area that we have of green space, pervious versus impervious all of that meets the current zoning.  One thing that we did look at we’re submitting a Steep Slopes application and we do have a little bit area of that a little bit disturbed.
Mr. John Bernard asked you’re going to have an addition but no increase in usage?

Mr. Jason Anderson responded that’s correct.  In fact, the plans show seating and actually lays out the seating according to New York State Building Code and there is no additional.

Mr. John Bernard asked the only question I had was on your site plan and on the drainage.  On this lower side of the drawing up on the board there, you’ve got an existing dry well, which I assume is still functioning properly because you’re going to add drainage into it. 

Mr. Jason Anderson responded we’re going to be adding drainage.

Mr. John Bernard stated and you’re adding three other dry wells.

Mr. Jason Anderson responded we’re adding three others.  We do have to clean it out.  Over the years, in fact there was construction up above that needs to be cleaned out and confirmed.  The interesting thing is that if you notice in the drainage report, the soils are incredible there, it’s bank run and those three seepage pits are really going…

Mr. John Bernard asked your existing septic system is two or three feet lower than the lowest grade of the parking lot in that corner.

Mr. Jason Anderson responded yes but it’s further up towards…

Mr. John Bernard continued yes but that is the natural drain point for that whole area.  I assume that’s why you’ve added these other dry wells.

Mr. Jason Anderson responded exactly, we’ve added the other dry wells to be able to take care of that additional paving. 

Mr. John Bernard asked right now you’re not having any problem with that septic system there?

Mr. Jason Anderson responded not since 1967, we have no troubles.

Mr. John Bernard asked do you have room to put a new field in if you have to?

Mr. Jason Anderson responded yes, it was designed with expansion and that still works with what we’re showing and you can actually see a few of the other circles there where the septic is.  That is part of the expansion that was originally designed and so we’ve got an application in with the Department of Health and we have their documentation which shows that it’s an approved system.

Mr. Robert Foley asked would there be any need on that same subject to have a dry sewer capability in case in the future you expand, you have more parishioners and so forth, members of the Church and you may have to connect to a sewer if you have a failure in your septic even though you have ample…

Mr. Ed Vergano responded dry sewers are required in subdivisions but not for site plans.  There’s no sewer in the area.  As the applicant mentioned, this is an area which has a lot of bank run permeable type of soil so that septic system should work for many more years.

Mr. Robert Foley stated the nearest sewer line would be at the golf course.
Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes, that’s a waste of site.

Mr. Robert Foley asked also, you don’t anticipate any more usage or volume?

Mr. Jason Anderson responded no, it’s interesting, when it comes to septic in particular, the volume has actually decreased because we’re using more efficient fixtures from what is there right now and we’re increasing it by one fixture.  So, the decrease with all of the fixtures is actually helping us quite a bit in that area and we really have no room to expand beyond this.  We’ve maxed out at the zoning for that area.  We also have to still meet New State Code for all of the seating and things such as that.

Mr. Robert Foley asked but you would have additional car usage with the addition of the parking area?

Mr. Jason Anderson responded you know what’s interesting, the site right now has 19 paved parking spaces.  There is a whole area that’s gravel right now and that’s where the overflow is.  We’re trying to take that overflow and turn it into something that’s a little easier to plow and maintain. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked any other questions from the Board?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairperson I make a motion that we set a site visit for this application on January 31st at 9:00 a.m.? Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated on the question, just to confirm I was talking that you have meetings that day. 

Mr. Jason Anderson responded the first Congregation, their meeting starts at 9:30 a.m. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I assume we’ll be done.  But, when you say it starts at 9:30 a.m. are the cars going to be arriving at 9:15 a.m?
Mr. Jason Anderson responded 9:15, 9:10 a.m. something like that. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just be aware of that.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we will see you on the 31st.
PB 9-09      b.
Application of Brookfield Resource Management Inc., for the property of 2114 APR, LLC, for Site Development Plan Approval and a Steep Slope Permit for a recycling facility for scrap metal from end-of-life vehicles, as well as tires, all fluids, batteries, mercury switches, and other recyclables  that are part of the vehicle and for recycling of other end of life durable goods that are primarily constructed of metal at a facility located at 2105 & 2109 Albany Post Road (Route 9A) as shown on a 5 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan, Brookfield Resource Management” prepared by Nosek Engineering dated December 24, 2009 (see prior PB 35-06)

Mr. David Steinmetz stated here this evening on behalf of Brookfield.  With me this evening, my client Tom Malone, my partner Brad Schwartz and Jim Ulrich.  We were here several months ago and made an initial presentation in connection with our site plan amendment request and, as  you all know, this was referred to the Town Attorney for an interpretation and determination whether or not this application was somehow covered by the Moratorium.  Despite the fact that we had provided you with a letter from Mr. Wood back in April of 2009, there was some renewed concern.  You got another opinion.  You received an opinion memo from Mr. Wood dated January 8th, 2010 and he once again reconfirms that this application is not in any way precluded or barred by the pending Moratorium. That having been said, we’re anxious to move forward with a modest site plan amendment and as I explained in the work session, the Special Permit that pertains to this property which is regulated and licensed as a junk yard under your Town Code, the Special Permit expires on March 5th of 2010.  The Special Permit that’s currently in effect that was issued to Kauffman Autoparts to operate a junk yard was mandated that any renewal of that Special Permit be filed in January of 2010.  We have filed for our renewal, we have also as we have indicated to you filed for a site plan modification which really relates to some improvements to the site.  I’d like Mr. Malone to have an opportunity to address you briefly on what his operation is.  We did take down some of the questions that we got during the work session relative to the Elmsford operation of Brookfield and you’re going to heard something about that in terms of compare and contrast as well as the nature of this operation as it’s defined as a junk yard under the Code.  If I may Madame Chair if I could allow Mr. Malone to address you, I think it would be very productive. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor responded fine. 

Mr. Tom Malone stated Brookfield’s a 40 year old company.  We operate in three locations: Elmsford, the Bronx and Montrose.  We’re basically a recycling company.  The focus of the operations in Montrose is recycling junk vehicles and other types of junk.  The difference between our operations and the prior operations is basically an approach in the number of vehicles that are kept on the property.  The Kauffman operation typically kept about 1,200 vehicles in inventory on any given day.  We will probably operate closer to about 100 or 200 vehicles.  We focus on inventory turn.  That’s the big difference.  Other than that, we bring the vehicles in, we process them, we sell some parts off of the vehicles and what’s left of the vehicle after we’ve sold the parts is considered scrap metal and it’s sold as scrap metal.
Mr. David Steinmetz asked can you explain how you acquire the materials in terms of purchasing materials?
Mr. Tom Malone responded the vehicles are purchased based on their parts value.  Every vehicle’s assessed for what’s its resale value is in parts as well as its scrap value after the parts are removed.  In Kauffman’s operation, typically what they did is bring a car in and it would sit for probably six months to a year until they sold as many parts as they could off the vehicle.  That’s not really our approach.  What we do when we bring a vehicle in is identify the parts we want to sell.  We may have a vehicle that we know we can sell two components off of that vehicle so within 48 hours of the vehicle arriving at the facility, we’ll remove those two components and then scrap the rest of the vehicle out so that the vehicle is not sitting there.  It actually leaves the facility within two or three days, three days at the most. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what do you mean when you say you scrap it out?  I don’t think I understand the process.

Mr. Tom Malone responded that basically means the vehicle, the junk vehicle’s recycled.  There’s going to be no more parts value, or no more parts sales based off of that vehicle.  Most vehicles are comprised of about 75% to 80% steel and the steel has recycle value.  We prepare the vehicle to get sent, to make it’s way back to – or the steel components of it, to makes its way back to a steel mill.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what does that car look like when it’s leaving to go to the mill, that’s what I want to know?

Mr. Tom Malone responded that’s changed as well.  In Kauffman’s operation, they typically flattened the vehicles.  The reason for that is to maximize the transport.  If you don’t densify the vehicles you won’t maximize the shipping weights on the trucks.  You’re paying to ship from point A to point B.  If you put 10 vehicles on the truck, you’re paying the same as if you put 20 vehicles on the truck.  The reason you densify them is to get the 20 vehicles on the truck to lower your shipping cost.  In Kauffman’s operation they flattened the vehicles.  We cube the vehicles.  It’s a little bit different. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you have a large machine, you put the car in it and it crushes it into a cube?

Mr. Tom Malone responded it makes a cube out of it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I saw a documentary once and I think I understand now.

Mr. Tom Malone responded what that allows us to do is it’s more efficient.  We can ship the material in dump trailers as opposed to flat trailers.  New York State requires if you’re going to flatten the vehicles you have to wrap them, there’s a lot more you have to do to them.  If you cube them it’s a lot easier.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked a fewer larger trucks to give you those results?
Mr. Tom Malone responded yes, you can get more cars in the truck. 

Mr. Ed Vergano asked how do you control the noise?

Mr. Tom Malone responded the noise would be no different than Kauffman’s operation.  We’d set up operations on the property so that at the property line the noise would be no different than it was during Kauffman’s time.

Mr. John Bernard asked so your cube machine is a hydraulic press?

Mr. Tom Mallone responded hydraulic press.

Mr. John Bernard asked so it’s not a thing where it beats a car into a cube?

Mr. Tom Malone responded it opens up kind of like a clamshell, you place the vehicle into it, it closes this way and this way and then there’s two pistons that compress it.  It comes out to a 3’ x 3’ x 3’ cube.

Mr. John Bernard asked before you cube a car or what’s left of it, you’ve already taken out the engine block and it goes into a separate container?

Mr. Tom Malone responded no, the engine block may or may not be in the vehicle.  If we sold the engine as a used part, it won’t be in there.  If the engine did not have value as a used part, it will be in the vehicle.

Mr. John Bernard asked if you are not reselling a whole engine, do you strip off parts – for instance starters?  Do you strip off starters separate from the engine?

Mr. Tom Malone responded we could.  

Mr. John Bernard asked do you?

Mr. Tom Malone responded yes, we do, in certain instances.  Certain starters have value as resale, certain starters don’t.  If they don’t, it just goes out as scrap.

Mr. John Bernard asked and soft goods?  All the seats, the leather, the fabrics?

Mr. Tom Malone responded they stay in the vehicles.

Mr. John Bernard asked they stay in the vehicles?  Because, then they burn off at the mill?

Mr. Tom Malone responded no, the next step is the vehicle is moved to a shredder plant.  The shredder plant, you take the cubed car, you put it into the shredder plant, think of it as a wood chipper for cars.  

Mr. David Steinmetz stated this is off-site.

Mr. Tom Malone responded no, not in Montrose, off-site.  It’s shipped to the shredder plants.

Mr. John Bernard asked do you have a shredder in Elmsford?

Mr. Tom Malone responded no. 

Mr. John Bernard asked so it’s really off-site?

Mr. Tom Malone responded it could be Western Pennsylvania, it could be Ohio, it could be New Jersey, it could be Québec, but somewhere else.  The car is broken down into pieces that are the size of a cell phone and then the components are mechanically separated.  The first thing is all the steel is taken out by using magnets. Then, the non-ferrous metals are taken out using other technology and what’s left is the material-like the seat cushions, some of the plastics that don’t have recycle value, glass, that type of stuff.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated at the work session the Chairman asked the question about --- because we had identified the removal of fluids and batteries and if you could explain that and explain Kauffman had those types of materials.
Mr. Tom Malone stated what happens when a vehicle arrives on site one of the first things you do is remove the battery.  Kauffman did that, we do that.  The reason for that is the battery is a potential source of fire.  If you remove the battery from the vehicle you cut down the potential for a fire with that vehicle by quite a bit.  Kauffman did that.  You remove the battery.  The batteries are recycled separately.  They go to a battery recycler who takes out the led and then the plastic and then recycles that.  The nearest battery recycler is up in the Town of Wallkill.  The next thing we do is remove all the fluids.  In Kauffman’s time it wasn’t unusual to just release the fluids into the ground whether that’s antifreeze, washer fluid, transmission fluid, that type of thing.  Times have changed.  What we like to do is capture the fluids because they now have recycle value.  We can sell the used oil, we can sell the anti-freeze, we can sell the washer fluid, we can sell the Freon.  It’s important for us to capture these fluids because everything that comes into that facility we purchase so we have to maximize the value of it.  We have to get everything we can out of it. 
Mr. John Klarl asked are the fluids removed on a pad?

Mr. Tom Malone responded the fluids are removed – the vehicle’s put on what we call a fluid-removal rack.  It’s put up on a rack and we use suction to drain the fluids out.  It is on a special rack that has a containment under in case you do get a spill during the fluid removal process.

Mr. John Klarl asked but it’s obviously not done on the soil of the property. 

Mr. Tom Malone responded no, we’re doing it inside actually.  We bring the vehicle into the building, we put it up on a rack, we drain the transmission fluid, the used oil, we take the fuel out, the antifreeze, the washer fluid, the Freon.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked Tom can you explain why you are applying to modify the site to put processing pad in there in addition to that filter?
Mr. Tom Malone responded right now none of the site is paved.  We prefer not to operate on a site like that for a lot of different reasons.  The biggest thing is just general housekeeping.  If you’re operating on a paved site, what we like to do a couple of times a day is run a sweeper through the facility to pick up dirt and broken glass and anything else that comes into the facility, mainly dirt.  Vehicles will have dirt on them and as you’re handling them the dirt shakes off.  When it rains it gets muddy, when it dries out it’s windy, it’s blowing around.  We prefer to operate on paved surfaces.  We also designed the paved surfaces in the event that there is a spill we designed the surfaces so the fluids will run into oil/water separators so we can capture them and handle them properly.  It’s basically a management preference.  It’s part of our approach to managing the handling of this type of material.
Mr. David Steinmetz asked can you hit the tires?  What happens to the tires in your yard? 

Mr. Tom Malone responded tires are removed from the vehicle.  The tires are recycled.  Unlike almost everything else that we handle off the vehicles, the tires we actually have to pay to get rid of.  When we purchased the property in February we had done quite a bit of work assessing the property prior to purchasing it.  We probably dug around 30 test pits to understand what was there before we were going to purchase it.  We knew there was quite a few tires on the property.  There was basically an illegal landfill there.  We worked it out with Mr. Kauffman.  We spent the summer and the first half of the fall excavating that landfill.  We pulled out somewhere around 25,000 tires and recycled them.  The way we operate is we take the tires off the vehicles and the tires move off the site within a week.  Once we have a trailer load of tires they move.  We don’t even store them outside.  They’re stored in a container or in a trailer.  It’s just the best management practice. Technically, you’re not supposed to have more than a 1,000 tires on a site without a permit from DEC but we knew they were there, we brought DEC in, we explained it to them.  We told them what we were going to do to clean it up.  They signed off on it, we cleaned it up, the tires are out of there.  Going forward, we don’t store tires.  Like I said, we just bring them in and move them out. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked your application also talks about the processing of durable goods.  Can you explain that?

Mr. Tom Malone responded that’s a little bit different.  That’s another form of junk that has recycle value.  Your washing machine is really no different than your car.  It’s mainly made of steel and some other metals; aluminum, some copper.  Same thing, we bring it in, it requires a lot less processing because it doesn’t contain the fluids, it doesn’t have batteries, it doesn’t have tires.  Basically, that material comes in, we place it in a container, when the container is full we densify that material and it actually ships out with the cars.  It goes to the same facility.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so refrigerators as well?

Mr. Tom Malone responded the difference with refrigerators is we drain the Freon.  That’s one item that has a fluid in it that we would capture.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what else comes under durable goods that you handle?

Mr. Tom Malone responded I would say appliances.  We handle things like electronics scrap but we won’t do that in Montrose.  We do that in Elmsford but we wouldn’t do that.  That’s a whole different business activity, electronics scrap.
Mr. John Klarl asked what about computer monitors and computer towers?

Mr. Tom Malone responded we wouldn’t even accept them in Montrose.

Mr. Steven Kessler reiterated so it’s washing machines, refrigerators, toasters, irons…

Mr. Tom Malone response old fencing, anything made of steel that would be coming out of a household or a business.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated building materials too, copper pipe, sheet metal.
Mr. Tom Malone responded that too.  Think of a siding contract who’s doing a job in Cortlandt and removes aluminum siding. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked could you give us a list – it doesn’t have to be exhaustive and it doesn’t have to be complete but give us a list, not now.  

Mr. Tom Malone responded basically it’s steel, aluminum, copper, brass, a little bit of led, led is mainly in the form of batteries.  There’s not a lot of led that’s generated out of this area.  

Mr. David Steinmetz asked where is the material coming from actually?

Mr. Tom Malone responded most of it comes from building activity whether it’s remodeling, anything that’s not vehicle-related.  

Mr. David Steinmetz stated geographically Tom.

Mr. Tom Malone responded Montrose services Cortlandt, Yorktown, Peekskill.  That’s the reason we purchased the property was to better service our customers in the northern part of the County.  It saves them basically a 50-mile trip to bring us a car or bring us siding or a refrigerator or whatever they’re going to bring us.  It really acts as a satellite operation for Elmsford.  Elmsford’s quite a bit different.  The biggest difference is scale.  Elmsford it’s an 18-acre operating facility.  Montrose we operate on three or four acres.  In Elmsford we’ve got 85 or 90 employees, in Montrose we have three employees.  It’s basically a satellite operation.  Think of it as a collection point to bring material in.  We process it and then we pass it along.  We don’t do used parts in Elmsford.  We will do some used parts in Montrose.  The focus in Montrose is junk vehicles.  Montrose will have three business activities, Elmsford has 15 different business activities.

Mr. John Bernard asked Mr. Malone, you said you were going to have 100 to 200 cars on site at any given time what’s your turnover rate then?  Are you processing 100 cars a day or 100 cars a week?

Mr. Tom Malone responded right now we’re processing probably 10 cars a day in Montrose.  Very often at any given day there’s only 20 or 30 vehicles there.  There are certain vehicles that we would purchase if it had enough parts value it may sit there for a month to six weeks, but your average junk vehicle that comes into Montrose is probably there less than two days. 

Mr. John Bernard asked I guess what I’m trying to get a handle on is the amount of traffic coming in, your materials coming in.  Would we expect 10 trucks a day bringing something in or one truck bringing 100 cars in?  

Mr. Tom Malone responded usually the junk vehicles come in two or three at a time on a truck.  Most of what came into Kauffman’s was one vehicle at a time.  Most of the guys that provide us with junk vehicles usually they try to maximize their transport so they’re trying to get two, three but it can be one, one to three.  The vehicle traffic is about the same as what Kauffman’s was.  It’s probably less right now.  He did quite a bit more retail sales.  He also had an auto repair business there.  We won’t have an auto repair business and we won’t do retail sales per se out of Montrose.  We will remove parts but the actual sales end of it would occur in our Bronx location.  The parts would move from Montrose to the Bronx and then get sold out of the Bronx.  We will warehouse some parts in Montrose and somebody may pick up the part there if that’s convenient for them.
Mr. John Klarl asked where’s the Bronx location?

Mr. Tom Malone responded it’s on Blondale Avenue in Central Bronx like Westchester Square area.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked if I were someone living in that community nearby this operation I guess I’d be looking at aside from the actual visual impact of having all these cars around things like noise and smell and air quality and whether anything was being emitted that ran into the ground and that kind of thing.  Can you talk about that?

Mr. Tom Malone responded the biggest thing is visual.  As we’ve said, what we’d like to do is we’d like to replace the existing fencing.  We’d like to make sure that we have nice fence, put some nice plantings up so that if you’re driving by the facility you see a nice fence and nice plantings.  

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I would like to stop you there because I want to make sure everybody knows that, Chris knows it.  I had asked that – when I first came before you and we got hung up on the issue of waiting for another opinion from Mr. Wood, I specifically which confirmed what he had already said, I specifically asked for permission to get that fencing up, told that to staff.  We were unable to do that.  I had asked you to come out and do a site inspection.  I just want you all to know Mr. Malone called me and the first thing he asked me was “get me permission to put up a fence because I want to make it more attractive.”  It’s still part of the application.  I just don’t want any of you to think that we’ve sat for six months on this because it’s actually something I had asked Chris if we could do informally with just a building Permit but because it was in conjunction with the site plan modification it’s waited.  I just want the Board to know and he’ll address it, we’re ready to do that.

Mr. Tom Malone responded we understand the nature of our business and it’s very important for us to be proactive about the potential impacts of the business that we’re in.  It’s extremely important that we address all of your concerns.  The visual impacts – it’s very important, we understand.  That’s part of the reason – you put the fence in, you put the plantings up, you handle the visuals properly but we aren’t going to keep 1,200 vehicles there.  We really do focus on inventory turn.  That helps with the visuals because you’re not seeing 1,200 vehicles, like I said, you might see 50.  You won’t see them unless you actually enter the facility.  As far as noise goes, the noise would be no different than Kauffman’s operation.  We’re sensitive to it.  We’re not going to take a very loud piece of equipment and set it up right on the property line where it can be heard in a residential area.  We would look at the property and set anything that may make noise in the center of the property or set to the back.  We understand that that’s a potential impact and we’d like to proactively address it.  I don’t want to have to get calls constantly about noise because that distracts us from doing our business.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and you would because I believe that we should always have signs posted on these fences you’re putting up that tells the person what number to call to complain about noise. 

Mr. Tom Malone responded if it’s noisy I want to know about it.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated they need to feel that they can do something about it. 

Mr. Tom Malone stated the noise would be essentially the same level of noise that you’d have of a truck running or a piece of a construction equipment running.  If you put a piece of construction equipment in the center of that property, it’s going to be fine at the property line but you’re not going to put it right up against the fence and operate it there. 
Mr. David Steinmetz asked how many months have you been operating there?
Mr. Tom Malone responded we finished excavating the landfill in September.  We started two operations on October 3rd.  We’ve been operating a little more than three months.  We’ve been working there but we’ve been conducting business for three months. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked and you’ve actually been crushing the cars?  When you say operating?

Mr. Tom Malone responded yes. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked if you have only 100 cars you’re saying may get the most at one time there and you have – how many acres is this property?  Three, four acres?

Mr. Tom Malone responded I think the property is about eight to nine acres.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked what are you using the rest of the property for?  I didn’t see that on the plan.  Are you going to stock-pile the materials or are you going to as you remove them from cars before you transport them out of there?  Do the plans show what you’re going to be doing with the rest of the property?

Mr. Tom Malone responded right now the rest of the property could be overflow storage.  There could be an occasion where we might receive 200, 300 vehicles in a three or four day period and it would take us a little while to process them.  That would provide us with overflow.  That’s a rarity.  Right now we excavated the illegal landfill.  In the process of excavating it we have around 25,000 to 30,000 yards of material after we removed all the tires, the metal, the batteries, everything else that was in this pile and then we’re going to screen it this spring.  The other important thing to note is that about 80% of that landfill wasn’t even on the property.  It was over the property line.  We had to remove it and now that’s sitting on the property.  The left-hand portion of the property that’s where what was excavated from the landfill is sitting.  

Mr. David Steinmetz asked how much of the property will remain unused under your operation or vacant?

Mr. Tom Malone responded probably half.  

Mr. John Bernard asked I’m curious about the comment you made “occasionally you might have over a three of four-day period 300 or 400 cars” that would be 30 trucks a day coming in with three cars if that’s how they were shipping them in. 

Mr. Tom Malone responded in that case the cars would come in 10, 12 at a time on different type vehicles. 

Mr. John Bernard asked does this happen occasionally where you just run into a bonanza of junk cars?

Mr. Tom Malone responded two to four times a year.

Mr. John Bernard asked what would be the occasion for that?  Are there junk car fairs?

Mr. Tom Malone responded clunkers was an example of that.  During the clunkers program we did have quite a few cars in Montrose.  Another example would be a car dealership that floods and the car dealership’s insurance company totals the lot of cars and then they auction the cars off and we purchase those vehicles at auctions.  Usually what’s required is you have to remove them from that lot in a certain amount of time.  We would remove them from there, store them in Elmsford or Montrose and then we’d process them and get them out reasonably quickly but sometimes you get a flood of vehicles and you have to be prepared. 
Mr. John Bernard asked so in Elmsford you’ve got 18 acres, I assume you have storage space there then for several hundred cars?

Mr. Tom Malone responded yes, but Elmsford we operate the same way.  At any given time in Elmsford we probably only have 80 or 100 cars on site because we do the same thing in Elmsford.  Like I said, it’s a bigger operation. There’s other things that we do.  Consider up to 15 business activities in Elmsford, in Montrose it’s a subset of that, two or three. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked you mentioned about the fencing, maybe it’s in here, this would be quality fence, high enough to shield the internal operations of the facility?

Mr. Tom Malone responded what we’re thinking about is chain-link fence with the privacy slats but we’re open to…

Mr. Robert Foley asked it would be an improvement over what’s there now?

Mr. David Steinmetz it’s on the specs on the plans.

Mr. Robert Foley asked you mentioned the trucks coming in or construction debris, siding, etc.  Do they come in on covered trucks and what size trucks?

Mr. Tom Malone responded typically they come in a pick-up truck or a van.  If it’s a larger truck it’s covered.  

Mr. Robert Foley asked so it would be coming from small jobbers or something like that?

Mr. Tom Malone responded like a plumbing contractor, or electrical contractor, something like that.  

Mr. Robert Foley asked you mentioned it at the other meeting, your Elmsford location.  I know it’s a slightly different operation, but where is it again, on 9A?

Mr. Tom Malone responded just off of 9A.

Mr. Robert Foley asked where?

Mr. Tom Malone responded are you familiar with Sam’s Club on 9A in Elmsford?  If you’re heading South on 9A between the Sam’s Club and 287 on the right-hand side.

Mr. Robert Foley asked on the right before you get to 287?

Mr. Tom Malone responded yes.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked the former Town youth center is just off or right…

Mr. Tom Malone responded it’s on the property.

Mr. Chris Kehoe continued that’s the building that’s highlighted there?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded there are two different buildings there.  There’s a place of business and then there’s the youth center.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked did you have any plans for that house?

Mr. Tom Malone responded we don’t have any plans right now.  We could use it as office space although there is another building that we’re currently renovating for office.  Down the road we were thinking maybe we could see what type of uses the Town would look to have in that building and then maybe lease it out.  Office space for an accounting firm or a real estate agency or an insurance company, something along those lines.  We haven’t gotten there yet on the house. 
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked we’re going to refer this back right?  We’ll have the opportunity to go over this.

Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chairman I move that we refer this to staff.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re going to have to get a review memo for this and we thought we might actually take a look but I think it’s still a little too early for that.  We’ll just refer this back.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we’ve invited you and we’re prepared to do a site inspection so that you can see the operation whenever you’re ready.  I think it would be useful.  The only thing that I would mention, Madame Chairperson, as I did at the work session procedurally this Special Permit expires I think right after your March meeting so, as I said at your work session, we would ask that you in consultation with council confirm that you will be able to either: a) separate out the renewal and grant the renewal, separate and apart from the modification or b) give a temporary renewal while you review the balance of the application. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think that’s in order obviously that we do want one or the other.  I’m not sure John which would be most appropriate in this case.  Would the temporary one be better?

Mr. John Klarl responded we could do that. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated how would we draft this?  It’s going to expire…
Mr. David Steinmetz responded no you have time.  I’m not clear on when you’re bringing us back.  You’re referring this to staff.  I’m assuming that – are we coming back in February on this or are we coming back in March?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded to be honest with you I’m not doing the review memo tomorrow.  I’m probably here only half-a-day Friday, then you’re into Monday then by the time I get it to you, I just don’t think it’s going to be ready by February.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think it’ll probably be ready by March but what we could do if you think it’s appropriate, we could actually take this piece for the renewal, the temporary kind of thing, and pull it out bring it back for another meeting.  Could you do that?  Could we work on something like that?

Mr. John Klarl responded we can keep it together but make a motion as to one branch of the application. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated then we would do that piece maybe next month so they can rest assure that that’s done and then we’ll bring the application back in its entirety in March.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that would be very much appreciated so that he can sleep peacefully during the month of February leading into March. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated in the meantime we would have our zoning officer evaluate the present uses and the form that he uses the site and match the two…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated absolutely, and we will answer Mr. Kessler’s question about a product mix of permitted items in. 

Mr. John Klarl stated not exhaustive but representative. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so it will be back in February to deal with the Special Permit issue.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated a suggestion, you might just want to put us under Resolutions for just a temporary extension in February and then we get in and out of here.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you can work that out with staff.  I just wanted to put this idea in your client’s head that maybe you could consider a fence other than chain-link if it’s possible.  Maybe something nicer since you have all this acreage that you’re not going to use I’m just putting this idea out there.  You can push the fence back, put a beautiful berm, some nice shrubs in front of it and so when people drive by it really looks nice and the neighbors I’m sure would appreciate it too.  You don’t want to know what’s there, let’s just put it that way.  

Seconded, with all in favor saying "aye." 
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CORRESPONDENCE

PB 25-93    a.
Letter dated November 24, 2009 from Geraldine Tortorella, Esq. requesting the 4th 90-day time extension of Final Plat approval for Roundtop at Montrose located on Albany Post Road.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Madame Chair I move that we adopt Resolution number 2-10 granting this request, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 20-01    b.
Letter dated December 14, 2009 from Jeffrey Contelmo, P.E. requesting the 9th 90-day time extension of Final Plat approval for the Sunset Ridge Subdivision located on Locust Avenue.

Ms. Susan Todd stated Madame Chairperson I’d like to make a motion that we adopt Resolution 3-10 granting this long extension, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 10-08    c.
Letter dated December 10, 2009 from Patrick Bell requesting the 1st one-year time extension of Site Development Plan approval for the Northern Westchester Veterinary Hospital located at 2068 E. Main Street.

Mr. Robert Foley stated Madame Chairwoman I make a motion that we approve Resolution 4-10, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 22-98    d.
Letters dated December 18, 2009 from Joel Greenberg, RA and Richard Paul Stone, Esq. requesting the 12th 90-day time extension of Final Plat approval for the Apian Way Estates Subdivision located on Fawn Ridge Court.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we had some discussion about this at our work session.  This has been going on for quite some time.  Before we vote on this, we’d like to understand what’s taking so long and what your plans are?
Mr. Richard Paul Stone responded the reason I’m here – the applicant was concerned about the number of extensions and to be honest the principle reason for the delay was that the title was held with a corporation that has a brother and brother-in-law as owners.  They’ve had some difficulty in conducting business.  Frankly, I was engaged in large part in negotiate a resolution of that dispute.  I can tell you that I’ve been in conference with them.  I believe that that has been resolved and that they’ll be able to move forward more expeditiously.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what does more expeditiously mean?

Mr. Richard Paul Stone responded we are in the process of putting the property back on the market.  Imminently, and I’ve been advised by the broker that there are a number of people who are interested in the property and we believe that this will be resolved promptly.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you think it’ll be resolved within this next 90-day time extension?

Mr. Richard Paul Stone responded I’ll be candid, in this market, I can’t promise.  But, at this point it would be a terrible financial dislocation for these people to lose their investment at this point.  Frankly, I think it’s in the Town’s best interest.  Obviously, the increase in the tax base from undeveloped to developed property needs to be moved as promptly as you deem judicious but as promptly as possible.  You’ve got people who have been acting in good faith, are now resolving this dispute and we do believe it’s in the mutual best interest of the applicant and the Town. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we approved this in 2001.  That’s when this was first of the preliminary plat approval was approved in 2001 and here we are and eight years and change now.

Mr. Richard Paul Stone responded I wish I had been brought into this process sooner.  All I can say is that in 20 years of something practice family disputes have held up a lot of deals but I do believe they’ve made a significant change in their procedure.  I think you’ll see some different action.  

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated yes, but we’re still subject to the legalese of this real estate market at this point and that can go on and on and on.  They put it on the market it could go tomorrow or not sell in one year.  I’m not willing to be subject to that on this.  Since it’s been around for nine years, I think that if you want to put it on the market fine bring it back as a new application when and if it’s sold to the next owner.  
Mr. Richard Paul Stone responded with all due respect, the financial difference between continuing this application and a renewal will very likely doom their ability to move this property and I can say in good faith that in my analysis of this transaction is that there will be a very substantial delay in developing this property unless there’s some more time given with these owners who have invested quite honestly over 19 or 20 years. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked why are they putting it on the market?  We have a site plan that’s been approved for this subdivision.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I take it they don’t actually want to do the development and comply with the conditions.  They just want to sell an approved subdivision.

Mr. Richard Paul Stone responded correct because what’s happened is that as the market has dropped, their ability to continue to fund the process has become very difficult. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated my understanding from staff is that they’re not very far along after all this time with complying with the conditions, is that?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated as you saw there are a lot of time extensions tonight in various degrees but this approval for final approval has 16 conditions and someone who is actively trying to meet those conditions may be hung up because they can’t pay the $60,000 rec. fee but they’ll give us the easements or they can’t do this but they’ll do something.  I don’t believe there’s been any effort to meet any of the 16 conditions which may be a function of the fact that these people are really just trying to sell it.  But, then that gets back to the Planning Board’s issue of how long do they wait?

Mr. Richard Paul Stone responded I understand and it seems to me that what you’re balancing here is that on the one hand you can’t wait forever and on the other hand those conditions apply primarily to the function of value.  We have to find, in this market, a way to value this property so that we can find a buyer who will take the property, invest the money to solve those conditions.  On the other hand, the question is with these people who have obviously made a significant contribution of time and money to this property what is a reasonable course of conduct?  I understand that it’s a challenging balancing and you can’t wait forever. 

Mr. John Klarl asked is your client aware that this Board granted the extension tonight, the next time on they may not further extend it?

Mr. Richard Paul Stone responded they’re well aware of that.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated in addition, you might as well be aware that there’s some consideration of legislation being adopted that might further tie this Board’s hands.  

Mr. Richard Paul Stone responded I’m aware of that.  I’ll be as upfront as I can.  One of the things that I’ve had to tell them is that getting council involved is one alternative, the other alternative is to balance the expenses of the re-application and you certainly don’t want to spend money on me if you can do it in a cost-effective way.  We’re having that discussion and if these two families simply can’t get this property sold they’re going to have to face some very unfortunate financial realities and this property will then sit for a long time. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated for the record, I don’t think it’s a bad thing for the Town for the property to sit idle because I think actually the Towns do worse as residential properties is developed or the residents do worse because of the costs associated with developed versus undeveloped residential property.  One could argue I just don’t want to accept for the record your statement that the Town will somehow lose out if these houses aren’t built because actually I think that the taxpayers will do better because there’ll never be any school children coming off of that property if the houses are never built.
Mr. John Klarl stated generally, you’re absolutely right Ivan, in New York generally just looked at the cost for every dollar of tax you get on a new house it’s about a dollar ten in services.  

Mr. Ivan Kline stated that argument, in my mind, doesn’t carry any weight.  It’s just a question of what’s fair under the circumstances and I think we shouldn’t be expected to wait forever for them to get the price they’re looking for.

Mr. Richard Paul Stone responded in that regard the price is down about 40%.  They’re not waiting for a dream price, trust me. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairperson I move that we adopt Resolution number 5-10 granting the 12th 90-day time extension on the final plat.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think that it’s important that you convey to your clients that this may be the very last time, no matter what. 

Mr. Richard Paul Stone responded they’re present, they’ve heard everything.

Seconded. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked all in favor, “aye,” opposed; “opposed.”  Can we have a polling of the Board?

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked Mr. Kline; aye, Mr. Kessler; aye, Mr. Bianchi; opposed, Chairperson Taylor; opposed, Mr. Bernard; opposed, Ms. Todd; aye, Mr. Foley; aye.  It passes 4 to 3.

Mr. John Klarl asked would you like this application to give us a status report one month before the extension? 

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked would that be next month?

Mr. John Klarl continued so that we don’t just get the story that night, get something in your packages. 

Mr. John Bernard stated I don’t think we have to worry about it. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t either because they passed by the skin of their teeth.  I don’t think we’re going to have to worry.  I don’t think they’re going to get it next time. 

PB 37-06    e.
Letter dated January 4, 2010 from Ralph Mastromonaco, P.E. requesting the 2nd 90-day time extension of Final Plat approval for the Kings Ferry Commons at Kings Ferry Road. 

Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we approve Resolution 6-10, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 14-06    f.
Letter dated December 4, 2009 from Brad K. Schwartz requesting the Richard Heinzer application be placed on the January 13, 2010 Planning Board agenda.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I’m recused.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chairperson I move that we receive and file this letter, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 14-98    g.
Letter dated November 20, 2009 from Catherine B. Andreycak, Esq.  requesting that the language of Condition No. 4 of Planning Board Resolution 10-04 be amended with respect to the Washington Trails subdivision located on Washington Avenue.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked John Klarl would you make sure we’re all on the same page with this one?
Mr. John Klarl responded yes, on this correspondence we’re thinking about doing two things: making a motion to receive and file and to place this on the February 2nd, 2010 agenda and essentially there’s been a discussion about amending a certain condition, Washington Trails Resolution.  That condition is contained in Ms. Andreycak’s letter and that letter talking about taking lot 3 in getting the title to the Town and the Town conservation easement on it by Westchester Land Trust has been discussed with the Town Board on several occasions because the Town has to decide whether to take land and Ed has said they favorably looked at that and it’s described adequately in this Andreycak’s letter.
Mr. Ed Vergano stated that’s correct.  They’ll take the land subject to the formation of a conservation easement to be held by the Westchester Land Trust that they will serve as stewards.

Mr. John Klarl stated all to be done in a simultaneous closing.  We’ll have one closing where the Town gets the property and the conservation easement gets placed on top of that title.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Madame Chair I move that we receive and file the letter and that we bring the matter back at the February 2nd meeting, seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 1-08    h.
Letter from Joel Greenberg respectfully requesting a one-year extension of his site plan approval.  In addition, he discusses attempts to rent the retail space that he has being unsuccessful so far, so he would like the permission to rent 18 parking spaces to the automobile dealership to the west. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we were talking about this in part in our executive session and we’re thinking that this may be dealt with as a change of use and we should be referring this back to staff Joel. 

Mr. Joel Greenberg asked excuse me Madame Chairperson what do you mean by change of use?

Mr. Ivan Kline responded I don’t think it was a change in use.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think that was the terminology that I heard maybe I’m mistaken.  

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I think there’s two parts: there’s the extension of the approval and he’s looking for an amendment to the site plan to allow the parking. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated oh, an amendment to the site plan to allow.  

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated staff to investigate the parking. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated in view of the second request so that staff can take a look into that to see if there’s any problem, we discussed as pushing the whole item back to the February meeting.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated have staff review it, the two pieces, and bring it back at the February meeting.

Mr. John Bernard stated so moved with all in favor saying "aye." 
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NEW BUSINESS 
PB 1-10    a.
Application of Curry Properties, LLC for Site Development Plan Approval for the modification and expansion of the existing Curry Hyundai/Subaru to Curry Toyota and for the demolition of the existing HSBC Bank Building and the former Midas Muffler Shop and the construction of an approximately 26,500 sq. ft. Curry Subaru/Hyundai dealership on a 5.305 acre parcel of property located at 3025 East Main Street (Route 6) as shown on a 2 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan, Curry Properties” prepared by Joel Greenberg, R.A. dated December 26, 2009.

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated as you probably know, this is the former Geis property which Curry purchased a couple of years ago.  At the present time, the main building, which is at the top of the drawing now contains both Subaru and Hyundai.  Across the street next to the entrance to the Cortlandt Town Center is where Toyota is.  Basically, the plan is this: April 1st Toyota moves from across the street into the main building, so the main building will contain Toyota, Subaru and Hyundai.  The lease with HSBC bank expires in March of 2011, at that point we’ll take down the HSBC building, the old Midas Muffler building and build the new building in the lower right-hand corner. 
Mr. John Klarl asked when is that?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded that would be in March of 2011.  We’ll then take down those two buildings and construct the building that will contain Subaru and Hyundai.  Then, in the beginning of 2012…

Mr. John Klarl asked there’s no provisions from the Midas Muffler, HSBC after that on campus?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded all gone.  We don’t want to densify the property too much.  Basically, in 2012 the Toyota building which as you recall over the years, and many of you have been on the Board many years and Steve you’ll know probably better than anyone else, over the years Mr. Geis kept adding and adding and adding onto that building, that building is going to have a complete makeover into the Toyota image program as will both Subaru and Hyundai for their image program.  Once these constructions are completed that the site will really be an asset to that particular corner.  We’ll be adding landscape islands and so on and so forth.  We look forward to having you do a site inspection so we can actually point out exactly where the various items are going and what we think this will be a tremendous asset to that particular section of Town.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked Toyota, Subaru and Hyundai in the same building?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded that’s correct.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked and Toyota’s okay with that?  Because, in the old days when they came to use about fixing up the Toyota place it was they had to have their own building and they have to be a certain type.

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded they’ll be together for a year and then after that they’ll have their own building.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked and Toyota’s okay with that?

Mr. John Klarl asked the Toyota building that we’re talking about tonight it’s ultimately going to be used for cars?  There’s no other plans for the Toyota building once it’s vacated, it’s going to be cars again?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded we have no idea.  Their lease expires so once it goes back to Mr. Geis, I don’t know what’s going to happen. 

Mr. John Klarl asked there’s no plans?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded and we have no plans to make plans.

Mr. Robert Foley asked regarding your curb cut that’s closest to Westbrook on 6 on the north end, in my opinion as one Board member, if you could do something about that.  There are three curb cuts.

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded it’s to see on this plan but if you look at the actual template, where that’s being closed up.

Mr. Robert Foley stated okay, because that wasn’t a good idea that close.

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded originally it was there probably because originally on that particular corner was a gas station.  That’s probably why that curb cut was there.  

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chairperson I move that we refer this back to staff, seconded.

Mr. Joel Greenberg asked do you expect a site inspection on this property?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded in a while.

With all in favor saying "aye." 
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ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Madame Chair I move that we adjourn.
10:53 p.m.
Next Meeting: TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 2, 2010

I, SYLVIE MADDALENA, a Transcriptionist for the Town of Cortlandt as a subcontractor, do hereby certify that the information provided in this document is an accurate representation of the Planning Board meeting minutes to the best of my ability.
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Dated: January 27, 2010
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